
  

 

 
 

138 S. Brandon St. • Fallbrook CA 92028 • 760-731-9187 

 

 

 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 
 

WEDNESDAY 
JANUARY 9, 2019 

 
6:00 PM 

 
AT 

 
NEW MEETING LOCATION 

FALLBROOK WELLNESS CENTER 
1636 EAST MISSION ROAD  

FALLBROOK, CA 92028 
 



 

 

 
 

AGENDA 

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
Wednesday, January 9, 2019, 6:00 p.m. 

NEW MEETING LOCATION 

Fallbrook Wellness Center, Community Room, 1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

 

 
A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
B. ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 

Pursuant  to the Brown Act, additions to the Agenda as posted are exceptional, and expressly limited to three specific situations, as 

set forth in Government Code 54954.2(b): (1) an “emergency” as determined by majority vote of the board; (2) a 2/3 vote of the board 

finding that an item requires immediate action – and the need for this action arose in time after the agenda was posted or (3) the item 

was continued from an earlier meeting (no more than 5 days earlier), at which time the item was validly posted on the agenda of the 

earlier meeting. 

 

C. BOARD MEMBER AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Opportunity for board members and citizens to speak on items of interest within subject matter jurisdiction of the District. Please note 

that, for comments made on items  not appearing on the current agenda, the Board may take no action as to the comment at the 

current meeting (Gov’t Code 54954.3[a]), and the Board is allowed only a brief response to the speaker’s comment. For the record, 

please state your name.  “Request to speak” cards should be filled out in advance and presented to the Board President or the 

recording secretary.  The Board has a policy limiting any speaker to not more than five minutes  

 

D. PRESENTATIONS 

D1. Public Hearing – Transition to Zone-Based Elections – National Demographics Corporation 

 

E. CONSENT ITEMS 

 E1. Approval of November 2018 Financial Statements ......................................................... 2 

 E2. Minutes of December 5, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting .......................................... 22 

 E3. Minutes of December 12, 2018 Regular Board Meeting ................................................ 25 

 

F. REPORTS 

 Update of Committee Restructuring 

F1. Finance Committee – Chair: Directors Jeffries and Mroz 

F2. Gov’t and Community Relations and Public Engagement Committee – Directors  

 Schwartz-Frates and Mroz 

F3. Facilities Committee – Directors Leach and Mroz 

F4. Strategic Planning Committee – Directors Salmon and Jeffries 

F5. Chief Executive Officer – Bobbi Palmer 

F6. General Counsel – Blaise Jackson 

 

G. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 

 G1. First Review – Revised Bylaws for District (committee structure) .................................. 42 

 G2. Consideration of lease with MedPlus Urgent Care ........................................................ 51 

 G3. Consideration of Centraforce 2019 bridge contract proposal ......................................... 67 

G4. Consideration of Resolution 424 to change the location of regular meetings ................ 70 



 

 

 G5. Consideration of bank services and opening funds for account ..................................... 72 

 G6. Update designation of individuals authorized to deposit or withdraw funds in LAIF  

  Account ......................................................................................................................... 87 

G7. Recommendation from accountant for amount transferred quarterly from LAIF account to 

Citibank account 

G8. Call for Nominations – San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission ...................... 89 

 

H. ITEMS FOR SUBSEQUENT MEETINGS 

 H1. Other Director/Staff discussion items 

  H1a. Item(s) for future board agendas 

  H1b. Announcements of upcoming events: 

• Wellness Advisory Committee meeting – 2nd Wednesday, January 9, 5:00-

6:00pm, Fallbrook Wellness Center, Community Room,1636 E. Mission Rd., 

Fallbrook 

• Community Collaborative for Health & Wellness Committee (CCH&W) meeting 

– 3rd Wednesday, January 16, 10:30-12:00am, Fallbrook Wellness Center, 

Community Room, 1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

• NCCCHI meeting – 1st Wednesday, February 6 2:00-3:30pm, FRHD 

Administrative Office, 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook 

• Finance Committee of the Whole meeting – 1st Wednesday, February 6, 

5:30pm, FRHD Administrative Office, 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook 

• Woman of Wellness – 1st Thursday, February 7, 6pm – FRHD Administrative 

Office, 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook 

 

H2. Next Regular Board meeting – Wednesday, February 13, 2019, 6:00pm 

 

I. CLOSED SESSION 

I1. Conference with Legal Counsel Concerning Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Gov’t Code 

54956.9(d)(2) – one case 
 

J. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 

 

K. ADJOURNMENT 

 
NOTE: This agenda posted at the Fallbrook Regional Health District Administration Office on Friday, January 4, 2019. The American 

with Disabilities Act provides that no qualified individual with a disability shall be excluded from participation in, or denied the 

benefits of District business.  If you need assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the District office 24 hours prior to 

the meeting at 760-731-9187. 

 

 

Board Secretary/Clerk 

 



Page 1 of 90



Page 2 of 90



Page 3 of 90



Page 4 of 90



Page 5 of 90



Page 6 of 90



Page 7 of 90



Page 8 of 90



Page 9 of 90



TOTAL
Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul '18 - Jun 19

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

400. · District
402 · Property tax revenue 29,432 38,328 42,990 89,729 630,000 435,000 47,635 406,000 42,500 214,000 48,477 32,285 2,056,376
403 · Interest / Dividends 10,417 10,417 10,416 10,417 10,416 10,416 10,417 10,417 10,416 10,417 10,417 10,417 125,000

Total 400. · District 39,849 48,745 53,406 100,146 640,416 445,416 58,052 416,417 52,916 224,417 58,894 42,702 2,181,376

460 · Lease Income
460.01 · Med+ Urgent Care (formerly A+) 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 0 0 0 0 0 0 28,800

Total 460 · Lease Income 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 0 0 0 0 0 0 28,800

Total Income 44,649 53,545 58,206 104,946 645,216 450,216 58,052 416,417 52,916 224,417 58,894 42,702 2,210,176

Gross Profit 44,649 53,545 58,206 104,946 645,216 450,216 58,052 416,417 52,916 224,417 58,894 42,702 2,210,176

Expense
500 · Admin. Expenses & Overhead

500.10 · Salaries 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 275,000
500.12 · Payroll Taxes 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 23,000
500.14 · W/C Insurance 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 1,507
500.15 · Employee Health & Welfare 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 15,000
500.16 · Board Stipends 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 21,000
500.17 · Education & Conferences 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 18,500
500.18 · Dues & Subscriptions 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 14,000
500.19 · Insurance - General 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 18,975
500.20 · Independent Accounting Services 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 10,200
500.21 · Annual Independent Audit 0 8,850 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,850
500.23 · General Counsel 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 45,000
500.25 · Office Expense

01 · Communications 304 304 304 304 304 304 304 304 304 304 304 304 3,650
02 · I.T. and Website services 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 11,000
03 · Refreshments 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 2,500
04 · Office Expenses 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 15,700
05 · LAFCO Admin fees 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 1,367
06 · Independent Contract Services 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 60,000

Total 500.25 · Office Expense 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 94,217

500.27 · Depreciation 429 429 429 429 429 429 429 429 429 429 429 429 5,151
500.29 · Dist Promotions & Publications 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 38,250
500.32 · Consultant Fees 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 102,750
500.33 · Copier Lease 833 833 833 833 833 833 834 833 834 833 834 834 10,000
500.36 · Accrued Vacation & Sick Leave 0 0 2,500 0 0 2,500 0 0 2,500 0 0 2,500 10,000
500.40 · Video/AV Equipment 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 5,000
580.01 · General Election 0 0 16,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16,500

Total 500 · Admin. Expenses & Overhead 58,129 66,979 77,129 58,129 58,129 60,629 58,130 58,129 60,630 58,129 58,130 60,630 732,900

570 · Mgmt./Maint. - E. Mission Road
570.02 · Gas & Electric 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 16,000
570.03 · Water 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 3,000
570.04 · Waste Management 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 1,000
570.06 · Landscape - Grounds Environment 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 12,000
570.07 · Custodial Services 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 6,000
570.10 · Maintenance Services & Repairs 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 5,000
570.25 · Office Expense

25.02 · I.T. & Website Services 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 3,000
25.04 · Office Expenses 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 12,000
25.06 · Independent Contract Services 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 45,000

Total 570.25 · Office Expense 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 60,000

570.29 · Dist. Promotions & Publications 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 10,000
570.32 · Consultant Fees 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 15,000

Total 570 · Mgmt./Maint. - E. Mission Road 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 128,000

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Profit & Loss Budget Overview

July 2018 through June 2019

Report 4Page 10 of 90



TOTAL
Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul '18 - Jun 19

590 · Mgmt./Maint. - S. Brandon Road
590.01 · Property Manager 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 25,000
590.02 · Gas & Electric 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 20,000
590.03 · Water 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 11,000
590.04 · Waste Management 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 1,700
590.06 · Landscape - Grounds Environment 838 838 838 838 838 838 838 838 838 838 838 838 10,050
590.07 · Custodial Services 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 9,360
590.08 · Elevator 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 3,000
590.09 · Vehicle Expenses 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 400
590.10 · Maintenance Services & Repairs 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 5,000
590.11 · Medical Records Store & Service 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 30,000
590.12 · Fire Alarm System 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 2,500

Total 590 · Mgmt./Maint. - S. Brandon Road 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 118,010

600 · Community Health Contracts
600.02 · Fbk Citizens Crime Prevention 2,625 0 0 0 2,625 0 0 2,625 0 0 2,625 0 10,500
600.04 · Boys & Girls Club 18,428 0 0 0 9,188 0 0 9,188 0 0 9,188 0 45,990
600.05 · Community Health Systems, Inc. 26,250 0 0 0 26,250 0 0 26,250 0 0 26,250 0 105,000
600.06 · Fallbrook Land Conservancy 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,000
600.07 · Fbk Senior Citizens Srvc Club 19,688 0 0 0 19,688 0 0 19,688 0 0 19,688 0 78,750
600.08 · Fallbrook Smiles Project 18,769 0 0 0 18,769 0 0 18,769 0 0 18,769 0 75,075
600.09 · Fallbrook Union  H. S. District 5,000 0 0 0 5,000 0 0 5,000 0 0 5,000 0 20,000
600.11 · Palomar Family Counseling Srvc 20,738 0 0 0 20,738 0 0 20,738 0 0 20,738 0 82,950
600.17 · Foundation for Senior Care 54,882 0 0 0 54,882 0 0 54,882 0 0 54,882 0 219,527
600.18 · Fallbrook Food Pantry 50,000 0 0 0 25,200 0 0 25,200 0 0 25,200 0 125,600
600.33 · REINS Therapeutic Prgm 17,063 0 0 0 17,063 0 0 17,063 0 0 17,063 0 68,250
600.46 · Mental Health Systems, Inc. 2,428 0 0 0 2,428 0 0 2,428 0 0 2,428 0 9,711
600.48 · UCSD Eye Mobile for Children 0 0 0 0 2,975 0 0 2,975 0 0 2,975 0 8,925
600.53 · Jeremiah's  Ranch 3,872 0 0 0 3,872 0 0 3,872 0 0 3,872 0 15,488
600.54 · Healthy Adventures Foundation 2,363 0 0 0 2,363 0 0 2,363 0 0 2,363 0 9,450
600.57 · NC Fire Protection District 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25,000 0 0 0 0 25,000
600.58 · Michelle's Place 6,300 0 0 0 6,300 0 0 6,300 0 0 6,300 0 25,200

Total 600 · Community Health Contracts 258,403 0 0 0 217,338 0 0 242,338 0 0 217,338 0 935,416

800 · District Direct Care Services
800.02 · Med+ Urgent Care 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 60,000

Total 800 · District Direct Care Services 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 60,000

Total Expense 347,032 97,480 107,630 88,630 305,967 91,130 78,631 320,967 81,131 78,630 295,968 81,131 1,974,326

Net Ordinary Income (302,383) (43,935) (49,424) 16,316 339,249 359,086 (20,579) 95,450 (28,215) 145,787 (237,074) (38,429) 235,850

Net Income (302,383) (43,935) (49,424) 16,316 339,249 359,086 (20,579) 95,450 (28,215) 145,787 (237,074) (38,429) 235,850

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Profit & Loss Budget Overview

July 2018 through June 2019

Report 4 Page 11 of 90



Report 5

Page 12 of 90



Report 6

Page 13 of 90



Page 14 of 90



Page 15 of 90



Page 16 of 90



Report 9

Page 17 of 90



Report 9

Page 18 of 90



Report 9

Page 19 of 90



Report 9

Page 20 of 90



Page 21 of 90



Page 22 of 90



Page 23 of 90



Page 24 of 90



Page 25 of 90



Page 26 of 90



Page 27 of 90



Page 28 of 90



Page 29 of 90



Page 30 of 90



Page 31 of 90



Page 32 of 90



Page 33 of 90



Page 34 of 90



Page 35 of 90



Page 36 of 90



Page 37 of 90



Page 38 of 90



Page 39 of 90



Page 40 of 90



Page 41 of 90



 

 

 

 

AMENDED & RESTATED BYLAWS 

OF 

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

___________________________________________________ 

 

 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

 

1.1    “Administrator” means the Executive Director or Chief Executive of the District. 

 

1.2 "Board" means the Board of Directors of the District.  

 

1.3 “Director” means an elected/appointed member of the Board of Directors. 

 

1.4  "District" means the Fallbrook Regional Health District. 

 

1.5  "Facilities" means the health care facilities and services operated by the District. 

 

 

ARTICLE II 

ORGANIZATION, POWERS AND PURPOSES 

 

2.1 ORGANIZATION.  The District is a political subdivision of the State of California

 organized under the Local Health Care District Law, Division 23 of the Health and Safety

 Code. 

 

2.2 GENERAL PURPOSES AND POWERS.  The District is organized for the purposes 

described in the Local Hospital District Law and shall have and may exercise such powers 

in the furtherance of its purposes as are now or may hereafter be set forth in the Local 

Health Care District Law and any other applicable statutes, rules, or regulations of the State 

of California.  The powers of the District include, but are not necessarily limited to, all of 

those powers authorized by Health and Safety Code Sections 32121 through 32138, 

inclusive. 

 

2.4  DISSOLUTION.  Any proposal for dissolution of the District shall be subject to 

confirmation by the voters of the District in accordance with Cortese-Knox Local 

Government Reorganization Act of 1985 (Gov. Code, § 56000 et seq.). 

 

ARTICLE III 

OFFICES 

 

3.1  PRINCIPAL OFFICE.  The principal office of the District is hereby fixed and located at 

 138 South Brandon Road, Fallbrook, California 92028. 

Page 42 of 90



 

 

Bylaws of Fallbrook Regional Health District  Page 2 

 

 

 

ARTICLE IV 

BOARD 

 

4.1  GENERAL POWERS.  The Board is the governing body of the District. All District 

powers shall be exercised by or under the direction of the Board.  The Board is authorized 

to make appropriate delegations of its powers and authority to officers and employees.  The 

Board shall evaluate the performance of its principal Administrator, as well as the Board’s 

own performance. 

 

4.2  OPERATION OF FACILITIES.  The Board shall be responsible for the operation of all 

Facilities owned, leased, or operated by the District, according to the best interests of the 

public health, and shall make and enforce all rules, regulations, and bylaws necessary for 

the administration, government, protection, and maintenance of the Facilities under the 

Board's management and all property belonging thereto, and may prescribe the terms upon 

which patients may be admitted thereto. 

 

4.3  NUMBER AND QUALIFICATION.  The Board shall consist of five (5) members, each 

of whom shall be a registered voter residing in the District. 

 

4.4  ELECTION AND TERM OF OFFICE.  An election shall be held in the District on the first 

Tuesday after the first Monday in November in each even-numbered year, at which a 

successor shall be chosen to each Director whose term shall expire on the first Friday of 

December following such election.  The election of Board members shall be an election at 

large within the District and shall be consolidated with the statewide general election.  The 

candidates receiving the highest number of votes for the offices to the filled at the election 

shall be elected thereto.  The term of office of each elected Board member shall be four (4) 

years or until the Board member's successor is elected and has qualified, except as 

otherwise provided by law in the event of a vacancy.  An orientation shall be provided 

which familiarizes each new Board member with his or her duties and responsibilities, 

including the Board's responsibilities for quality care and the Facilities' quality assurance 

programs.  Continuing education opportunities shall be made available to Board members.   

 

4.5  VACANCIES.  When a vacancy occurs on the Board of Directors, and except as otherwise 

specified by statute, the remaining Board members may fill any vacancy on the Board by 

appointment as outlined in Government Code Section 1780. 

 

4.6  RESIGNATION OR REMOVAL.  Any Board member may resign effective upon giving 

written notice to the Chairman, the Secretary, or the Board, unless the notice specifies a 

later time for the effectiveness of such resignation.  The term of any member of the Board 

shall expire if the member is absent from three consecutive regular meetings or from three 

of any five consecutive meetings of the Board and if the Board by resolution declares that 

a vacancy exists on the Board.  All or any of the members of the Board may be recalled at 

any time by the voters following the recall procedure set forth in Division 16 of the 

Elections Code. 

Page 43 of 90



 

 

Bylaws of Fallbrook Regional Health District  Page 3 

 

 

4.8  COMPENSATION.  Each Director shall be compensated as authorized by the Local Health 

Care District Law (Health & Saf. Code, § 32103) at the rate of One Hundred Dollars ($100) 

per meeting, with a limit of five (5) meetings per month.  For purposes of this paragraph, 

the word “meeting” includes all regularly scheduled Board meetings, special Board 

meetings, Board committee meetings, and sanctioned meetings inclusive of events 

sponsored by other local governments at which the District is expected or is invited to be 

represented as an official participant; meetings and/or events of agencies of which the 

District is a member or a subscribing participant, including events presented or sponsored 

by the Association of California Healthcare Districts (“ACHD”), the California Special 

District’s Association (“CSDA”), and any Board-approved educational seminars, including 

attendance at periodic ethics training prescribed by Assembly Bill 1234.  Additionally, 

included are any and all occasions that constitute the performance of official duties such as 

District-sponsored special events, activities promotional of District-sponsored events, and 

in conducting review and/or site visits of District grant program applicants or recipients.  

 

ARTICLE V 

BOARD MEETINGS 

 

5.1  BOARD MEETING.  A meeting of the Board is any congregation of a majority of the 

members of the Board at the same time and place to hear, discuss, or deliberate upon any 

item that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  A meeting is also the use 

of direct communication, personal intermediaries, or technological devices that is 

employed by a majority of the members of the Board to develop a collective concurrence 

as to action to be taken on an item by the members of the Board. 

 

5.2  REGULAR MEETINGS.  Regular meetings of the Board shall be held as follows: 

 

On the second Wednesday of each month at 6:00 p.m. at 1636 E. Mission Road, Fallbrook, 

California 92028;  provided,  however, that should said date fall upon a legal holiday, then 

the meeting shall be held at the same time on the next business day. 

 

5.3 ANNUAL ORGANIZATION MEETING.  The Board's annual organizational meeting 

shall be held on the second Wednesday in December at the place designated in a resolution 

by the Board.  At that meeting, the Board shall organize by the election of one of its 

members as President, one as Vice-President, and one as Secretary.  The President shall 

appoint a Treasurer who shall serve at the pleasure of the Board.  The Board shall also fix 

the date, time, and location for the regular Board meetings for the ensuing year. 

 

5.4 SPECIAL MEETINGS.  A special meeting may be called at any time by the Board 

President or by a majority three-fifths (3/5th) of the Board members, by delivering 

personally or by mail written notice to each Board member and to each local newspaper of 

general circulation, radio, or television station requesting notice in writing.  Such notice 

must be delivered personally, by mail, or by electronic or digital means at least twenty-four 

(24) hours before the time of such meeting as specified in the notice.  The call and notice 

Page 44 of 90



 

 

Bylaws of Fallbrook Regional Health District  Page 4 

 

shall specify the time and place of the special meeting and the business to be transacted.  

No other business shall be considered at special meetings. 

 

5.5 QUORUM.  A majority of the members of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the 

transaction of business.  The act of a majority of the Board members present at a meeting 

at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board.  No action shall be taken by 

secret ballot. 

 

5.6 ADJOURNMENT.  The Board may adjourn any regular, adjourned regular, special, or 

adjourned special meeting to a time and place specified in the Order of Adjournment. Less 

than a quorum may so adjourn from time to time. A copy of the Order or Notice of 

Adjournment shall be conspicuously posted on or near the door of the place where the 

meeting was held within twenty-four (24) hours after the time of the adjournment. 

 

5.7 RULES AND REGULATIONS.  The Board may adopt rules, regulations, and standard 

procedures governing the Board, the District, and any District Facilities and programs. Any 

rules, regulations, or procedures shall not conflict with these Bylaws. 

 

5.8 MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC.  The public shall be entitled to attend the open session 

portion of every Board meeting.  Every agenda for regular meetings shall provide an 

opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on items of interest to the public 

that are within the jurisdiction of the Board, regardless of whether such items are on the 

current agenda.  If a member of the public addresses an item within the Board’s jurisdiction 

that is not on the agenda, the Board shall take no action respecting the item addressed by 

the member of the public.  The Board may adopt reasonable regulations concerning the 

amount and duration of time individual speakers are permitted to address the Board.  The 

Board shall not prohibit any speaker from raising public criticism of any District program 

or action taken by the Board, or public criticism of any District rule, regulation, or standard 

procedure.  

 

ARTICLE VI 

BOARD COMMITTEES 

 

6.1  APPOINTMENT.  All committees, whether standing or special (ad hoc), shall be appointed 

by the Board President and shall be comprised of not more than two (2) members of the 

Board of Directors and such additional members as may be appropriate. The chairman of 

each committee shall be appointed by the President.  All committees shall be advisory only 

to the Board unless otherwise specifically authorized to act by the Board. 

 

6.2  STANDING COMMITTEES.  Standing Committees shall meet periodically.  The District 

shall have the following Standing Committees: 

 

Finance.  This committee shall be responsible for review of budgetary and financial matters 

related to the District including the annual audit and community health contracts program.  

This committee shall also be responsible for review of the District investments and 

Page 45 of 90



 

 

Bylaws of Fallbrook Regional Health District  Page 5 

 

appraisal of market conditions relating to prudent investment of District funds. The Finance 

committee shall meet monthly.    
 

 

Facilities.  This committee shall be responsible for periodic inspection of buildings owned 

by the District and for review and consideration of real estate matters. The committee shall 

meet at least quarterly. 

 

 

 Strategic Planning.  This committee shall determine health needs of the District residents 

and prioritize those needs, recommend long-term services and programs to address those 

needs.  The committee shall meet at least quarterly. 
 
 Governmental and Public Engagement.  This committee shall be responsible for 

monitoring of healthcare legislation and public policy and for advisement of the District 

Board of possible/probable impact on matters of the District as/when indicated and for the 

initiation of appropriate action as/when indicated.   This committee shall be responsible for 

interface with other agencies, including other government levels, as well as the public; 

inclusive of speeches or public appearances, press releases, etc. for the purpose of 

edification of the District’s position/action on matters within the jurisdiction of the District. 

The committee shall meet at least quarterly. 

 

  

6.3  SPECIAL OR AD HOC COMMITTEES.  A special or ad hoc committee is an advisory 

committee composed solely of the members of the Board, which are less than a quorum of 

the Board and which does not have continuing subject matter jurisdiction and does not have 

a meeting schedule fixed by resolution or formal action of the Board.  Special or ad hoc 

committees may be appointed by the President for special tasks as circumstances warrant 

and upon completion of the task for which appointed such special or ad hoc committee 

shall stand discharged. 

 

6.4  ADDITIONAL CONSULTANTS.  A committee chairman may invite additional 

individuals with expertise in a pertinent area to meet with and assist the committee.  Such 

consultants shall not vote or be counted in determining the existence of a quorum and may 

be excluded from any committee session. 

 

6.5  MEETINGS AND NOTICE.  Meetings of a committee may be called by the Chairman or 

President of the Board, the chairman of the committee, or a majority of the committee's 

voting members.  Meetings and notice of all standing committees, and of any other 

committee, board, or other body, irrespective of their composition, whether permanent or 

temporary, decision-making or advisory, created by resolution or formal action of the 

Board, excluding special or ad hoc committees as defined in section 6.3 above, shall be 

noticed and held in accordance with the requirements of The Ralph M. Brown Act.   

 

Page 46 of 90



 

 

Bylaws of Fallbrook Regional Health District  Page 6 

 

6.6  QUORUM.  A majority of the voting members of a committee shall constitute a quorum 

for the transaction of business at any meeting of such committee.  Each committee shall 

keep minutes of its proceedings.  

   

6.7  MANNER OF ACTING.  The act of a majority of the members of a committee present at 

a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the committee so meeting.  No 

act taken at a meeting at which less than a quorum was present shall be valid unless 

approved in writing by the absent members.  For special or ad hoc committees, action may 

be taken without a meeting by a writing setting forth the action so taken signed by each 

member of the committee entitled to vote. 

 

6.8  TENURE.  Each member of a standing committee shall hold office for a period of one (1) 

year or until a successor is appointed.  Any member of a committee may be removed at 

any time by the Chairman or President subject to the consent of the Board.  A member of 

the Board shall cease to hold committee membership upon ceasing to be a Board member. 

 

ARTICLE VII 

OFFICERS 

 

7.1  PRESIDENT.  The Board shall elect one of its members as President at the annual 

organizational meeting, and the President shall hold office until a successor is elected.  In 

the event of a vacancy in the office of President, the Board may elect a new President.  The 

President shall be the principal officer of the District and shall preside at all meetings of 

the Board.  The President shall appoint all Board committee members and committee 

chairmen, shall consult with the Administrator in the preparation of meeting agendas, and 

shall perform all duties incident to the office and such other duties as may be prescribed by 

the Board from time to time.  

 

7.2  VICE PRESIDENT.  The Board shall elect one of its members as Vice President at the 

annual organizational meeting, and the Vice President shall hold office until a successor is 

elected.  In the absence of the President, the Vice President shall perform the duties of the 

President. 

 

7.3  SECRETARY.  The Board shall elect one of its members as Secretary at the annual 

organizational meeting, and the Secretary shall hold office until a successor is elected.  The 

Secretary shall provide for or coordinate the keeping of minutes of all meetings of the 

Board.  The Secretary shall give or cause to be given appropriate notices in accordance 

with these Bylaws, or as required by law, and shall authenticate all resolutions and other 

official reports and records of the District as needed. 

 

7.4  TREASURER.  The Board President shall appoint a Treasurer who shall serve at the 

pleasure of the Board.  The Treasurer shall be charged with the safekeeping and disbursal 

of the funds in the treasury of the District. The Treasurer shall also serve as the chairman 

of the Finance/Audit/Grant/Investment Committee. 

 

Page 47 of 90



 

 

Bylaws of Fallbrook Regional Health District  Page 7 

 

7.5  DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR.  The Board shall select and employ a District 

Administrator who shall serve as Executive Director or Chief Executive, and shall report 

to the Board.  The Administrator be a full-time employee of the District and shall be 

responsible for the day-to-day administration of the District and the implementation of 

policies adopted by the Board.  The Board shall develop, maintain, and periodically update 

a job description for the District Administrator, which job description shall outline in 

greater detail the functions and responsibilities of the Administrator’s position with the 

District. 

 

 

ARTICLE VIII 

AMENDMENT 

 

These Bylaws may be amended or repealed by vote of at least three (3) members of the Board at 

any Board meeting.  Such amendments or repeal shall be effective immediately, except as 

otherwise indicated by the Board. 

 

 

Page 48 of 90



 

 

Bylaws of Fallbrook Regional Health District  Secretary’s Certificate 

 

 

 

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE 

 

 I, the undersigned, the duly appointed, qualified, and acting Secretary of the Board of 

Directors for the Fallbrook Regional Health District, do hereby certify that attached hereto is a 

true, complete and correct copy of the current Bylaws of Fallbrook Regional Health District, duly 

adopted by the Board of Directors on _________________, 2019. 

 

 

Dated: _________________, 2019 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Secretary 

 

Page 49 of 90



Page 50 of 90



Page 51 of 90



Page 52 of 90



Page 53 of 90



Page 54 of 90



Page 55 of 90



Page 56 of 90



Page 57 of 90



Page 58 of 90



Page 59 of 90



Page 60 of 90



Page 61 of 90



Page 62 of 90



Page 63 of 90



Page 64 of 90



Page 65 of 90



Page 66 of 90



Page 67 of 90



Page 68 of 90



Page 69 of 90



Page 70 of 90



Page 71 of 90



Page 72 of 90



Page 73 of 90



Page 74 of 90



Page 75 of 90



Page 76 of 90



Page 77 of 90



Page 78 of 90



Page 79 of 90



Page 80 of 90



Page 81 of 90



Page 82 of 90



Page 83 of 90



Page 84 of 90



Page 85 of 90



Page 86 of 90



 

 

 

 

 

 

DISTRICT ACCOUNTS 

 

TYPE COMPANY SIGNATORS 
INVESTMENT LAIF  
INVESTMENT CALTRUST  
OPERATING   

CREDIT CARD   
 

Page 87 of 90



Page 88 of 90



Page 89 of 90



Page 90 of 90




